
Minutes 
Nottingham Selectmen’s Workshop 

May 9, 2014 
 

Approved as Amended 5/19/2014 1 

8:30 AM Chair Carpenter opened the workshop. 
Members Present: Mark Carpenter, Mary Bonser and Donna Danis 
Others: Charles A. Brown – Town Administrator, Dawn Wirkkala – Secretary, Ronald O’Keefe, 
David Goodwin, Paul Colby 
Property Liability Insurance Quote Review:  
Mr. Brown stated he presented the Selectmen’s questions to the insurance company representatives 
for answers.   
Chair Carpenter asked if the Town would be responsible for additional payment if a lawsuit 
judgment award is higher than the Town maximum liability insurance coverage.   
Mr. O’Keefe stated the statute limits are to protect municipalities; it is the maximum amount per 
person and per incident that a court can award as being part of a risk pool. 
Ms. Bonser stated she is concerned because courts have been known to issue awards higher than the 
liability limit.  Mr. O’Keefe stated he has never seen that type of situation and has never seen  
maximum cap issues. 
Mr. Goodwin stated he isn’t familiar with that particular law; however he has a current example of 
an injured employee collecting unemployment and is also suing for the liability insurance.  The law 
indicate collection one type of insurance or the other, but the employee is testing the law. 
Mr. O’Keefe stated this statute specifically addressed personal property and bodily injury; there are 
other sections of insurance, such as the total loss. 
Mr. Goodwin stated the differences between the Health Trust policies and private insurances are 
difficult to explain.  He included a $10 million rider, which can be reduced if the Selectmen request.  
Private insurances offer a maximum per claim, which is not the same as being part of the risk pool.   
Mr. Brown stated the Immanuel quote will be reduced because of a typo in portions of the coverage.   
Mr. O’Keefe stated there are additional things Health Trust covers that private insurance may not 
cover, such as volunteer medical and auto coverage, education and training, which is included in the 
quote. 
Mr. Brown stated he does not see the value in changing for $4,000.00, and the Health Trust also 
offers training to employees on a variety of issues. 
Mr. Brown stated he had an additional question regarding legal coverage being provided to past 
employees.   
Mr. Goodwin stated private insurance offers training and courses to employees if desired, also 
included in the quote.  Coverage for a past employee is also included within the limit of the policy. 
Mr. Brown stated PLT offers the Member Agreement booklet, which identifies each of the 
categories of coverage.   
Mr. O’Keefe stated the Member Agreement is the policy for the Health Trust.  Mr. Goodwin stated 
private coverage is based on individual riders within the policy, and the umbrella policy covers all 
the others. 
Mr. O’Keefe requested the Selectmen consider apples to apples comparison; Health Trust makes an 
attempt to pay the claims as easily as possible and if a mistake is made by not adding an existing 
structure or vehicle, coverage will still be offered.  Flooding, earthquake and volcanic eruption is 
also automatically included.  Chair Carpenter asked if movement from ground water was included 
in the PLT policy and Mr. O’Keefe stated it is not. 



Minutes 
Nottingham Selectmen’s Workshop 

May 9, 2014 
 

Approved as Amended 5/19/2014 2 

Chair Carpenter asked about the price difference with a lower umbrella policy.  Mr. Goodwin stated 
he receives a lump sum policy amount and would estimate an approximate $2500.00 savings with a 
$5 million dollar rider. 
Ms. Bonser asked about the information not covered by private insurance.  Mr. Goodwin stated 
flood and earthquakes are not covered.  Mr. Goodwin stated the Health Trust is a pool that covers 
all the members of the pool and the maximum liability amount is split between all members of the 
pool.  Private insurance offers the maximum amount solely to the Town. 
Mr. O’Keefe stated the PLT policy is a pool, but incidents like earthquakes or flooding tend to 
happen in a specific area and not state wide.   
Chair Carpenter asked about hurricanes.  Mr. O’Keefe and Mr. Goodwin stated the damage would 
be covered. 
Mr. Brown stated there are outside factors that can influence insurance coverage; current mapping 
stated one area of town that wasn’t within a flood plain is now, despite the houses being 30 feet 
above the water level. 
The Selectmen thanked the agents from coming and answering the questions. 
Mr. Goodwin reminded the Selectmen the quoted price would be less with a lower umbrella and a 
cap to the amount could not be guaranteed. 
Mr. O’Keefe stated there is an increase with a 5% cap for the next year. 
Chair Carpenter asked if Mr. Goodwin works with other municipalities.  Mr. Goodwin stated in the 
past, and they gradually transferred to the Health Trust but now it appears towns are swapping back 
to private coverage. 
The Selectmen reviewed their opinions regarding the policies and after discussion decided to remain 
with the PLT Health Trust.  The Selectmen also decided they would continue considering use of 
alternate property liability insurance with Mr. Sterndale.   
Motion by Ms. Danis, second by Ms. Bonser to continue use of PLT Health Trust insurance for the 
current year and continue research of a possible alternate property liability insurance company in 
the coming year.   
Vote: 3 – 0 in favor. 
Ms. Bonser and Chair Carpenter stated they like the Immanuel quote enough to further review the 
options for future consideration. 
Chair Carpenter asked Mr. Brown to call Mr. Goodwin and explain the Selectmen are very 
interested and look forward to understanding the differences in the coming year. 
Planning Board Letter: Mr. Colby presented the letter of request from the Selectmen to the 
Planning Board about their taking one year off from making ordinance changes to test how existing 
ordinances are working for Nottingham residents. 
Ms. Danis stated it is important for the Selectmen to express a unified request and wanted to try and 
make sure every interaction is professional and respectful. 
The Selectmen agreed and signed the provided letter to the Planning Board. 
Peters Driveway: Mr. Colby reviewed his research on the court case presented by Mr. Peters, 
which was based on a road that already existed and being used.  Mr. Colby stated his 
recommendation is to process the existing appeal to the Zoning Board.   



Minutes 
Nottingham Selectmen’s Workshop 

May 9, 2014 
 

Approved as Amended 5/19/2014 3 

Chair Carpenter asked about land locked pieces of property.  Mr. Colby stated it becomes a private 
issue between the two parties. 
A letter will be sent to Mr. Peters explaining the Zoning Board appeal process and outlined the steps 
that will be taken. 
Town Administrator: Ms. Danis provided a letter of introduction of the new Town Administrator 
Chris Sterndale, which included a summary of his experience, and recommended Mr. Sterndale 
have an opportunity to review the information prior to release.  The letter also included an 
opportunity for the public to come in and meet him.   
Ms. Bonser stated Mr. Sterndale might attend the next Planning Board meeting for introduction.  
Mr. Brown stated he proposed introducing Mr. Sterndale to all Department heads and employees 
and all boards and committees. 
Selectmen Liability: Ms. Bonser reviewed that the Board of Selectmen ultimately has 
responsibility and liability over all the decisions the Conservation Commission makes.  Ms. Bonser 
requested that the Board of Selectmen receive copies of the Conservation Meeting minutes and that 
meetings should also be televised.  Ms. Wirkkala would forward minutes to the Selectmen and 
stated they are also available on the Town website. 
Chair Carpenter stated the Selectmen have requested the Conservation Commission hold their 
meetings on Channel 22 and the members seemed agreeable.  It is one of the reasons why 
Conference Room #2 is being wired for TV access.   
Ms. Danis asked if the Selectmen can issue a policy about all boards and committees airing their 
meetings on Channel 22. 
Ms. Wirkkala stated there are occasions when more than two meetings are taking place at the same 
time.  The Selectmen decided there should be a change of meeting night if such a situation occurs.   
Ms. Bonser asked if the Selectmen should also have the ability to review non-public minutes as well 
and it was stated a legal opinion should be reviewed. 
ADJOURNMENT: Having no further business, 
9:27 AM Motion: by Ms. Bonser, second by Ms. Danis to adjourn. 
Vote: 3 – 0 in favor. 
Respectfully Submitted,  

Dawn Wirkkala 



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


